
(next page)→ 

Sussex County Board of Supervisors Meeting 

Rescheduled from Thursday, February 15, 2024 – 6 pm 
to February 22, 2024 – 6 pm 

General District Courtroom – Sussex Judicial Center 

15098 Courthouse Road, Sussex VA 23884 

ZOOM LINK 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/9527387527 

Meeting ID:  952 738 7527 

==================================================================== 

1. Commencement

1.01 Call to Order/Determine Quorum 

a. Approval of Board Member(s) Participating by Phone under Board Remote

Participation Policy

1.02 The Invocation 

1.03 The Pledge of Allegiance 

1.04 Agenda Amendment(s) 

1.06 Approval of Regular Agenda 

2. Approval of Consent Agenda

2.01 Approval of Minutes:  January 25, 2024 Special, February 1 Special (Rescheduled), and 

February 8 Special Board of Supervisors Regular Meetings 

2.02 Warrants and Vouchers 

2.03 Treasurer’s Report & Financial Update – for information only 

2.04 Departmental Reports – for information only 

3. Recognitions/Awards/Presentation

3.01 VDOT District Update – George Bowman, VDOT Franklin Residency 

3.02 Blackwater Regional Library Update – Ben Neal, Library Director 

3.03 RECOGNITION:  Carrie Lee Dobie Delk Gray – 100th Birthday 

3.04 RECOGNITION:  Deputy Bristol Phillips 

4. Public Hearing – none

5. Appointments

5.01 Appointments to Sussex Service Authority Board (Alternates) 

5.02 Recommended Nomination for Appointment to the Board of Zoning Appeals 

5.03 Appointments to Planning Commission 

6. Action Items

6.01 Blackwater Solar Project Application Consideration Schedule 

7. Citizens’ Comments

8. Unfinished Business

8.01 Adoption of Board Rules and Procedures 

8.02 Stony Creek Volunteer Rescue Squad ERP Compliance Plan of Action 



     

9. New Business – none  

 

10. Board Members Comments 

10.01 Blackwater District 

10.02 Courthouse District 

10.03 Henry District 

10.04 Stony Creek District 

10.05 Wakefield District 

10.06 Waverly District 

10.07 Yale District 

 

11. Closed Session – none  

   

12. Recess/Adjournment  
12.01 Recess/Adjournment 

12.02 Next Meeting, March 21, 2024 @ 6 p.m. 

 



 

Page 1 - Minutes of the January 25, 2024 Special Meeting of the Board of Supervisors 

 

At a Special Meeting of the Board of Supervisors  

Held at the Miles B. Carpenter Center Folk Art Museum 

Waverly, Virginia 

on Thursday, January 25, 2024 – 1:00 pm 

 

 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT 

Thomas W. Baicy, III 

C. Eric Fly, Sr. 

Alfred G. Futrell 

Wayne O. Jones 

Phyllis T. Tolliver 

Rufus E. Tyler, Sr  

Steve E. White 

 

STAFF PRESENT 

Richard Douglas, County Administrator 

David Conmy, Deputy County Administrator/Economic 

 Development Director 

Deste J. Cox, Treasurer 

Ernest Giles, Sheriff 

Nick Sheffield, Emergency Services Chief 

Shilton R. Butts, Assistant to the County Administrator/ 

 Clerk of the Board 

 

Item 1.  Call to order/Determine Quorum ( 

 

By general consensus, the January 25, 2024 Special meeting was called to order. 

 

Item 2.  Invocation 

 

There was no Invocation offered. 

 

Item 3.  The Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

There was no Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

Item 4.  Agenda Amendment  
 

There were no agenda amendments. 

 

Item 5.  Approval of Agenda 
 

There were no agenda amendments as  

 

Item 6.  Board of Supervisors Strategic Planning Session 



 

Page 2 - Minutes of the January 25, 2024 Special Meeting of the Board of Supervisors 

 

Mr. Jerry E. Cox, consultant, provided the following minutes for the Board of Supervisors' 

Strategic Planning Session. 

 

The Board of Supervisors identified the following issues during their work session (1/2)– 

 

STRENGTHS of the County – 

 

 Agricultural resources and forestry management 

 Rural, undeveloped land 

 Interstate highway and rail 

 First responder team 

 Public school system 

 Low tax rate 

 Location within the region 

 Available megasite (1,100+ acres) 

 Teamwork between the Board and County departments 

 Low debt service 

 Employees feel valued 

 

WEAKNESSES of the County – 

 

 Workforce (quality and quantity) 

 Declining County revenue (current and future impact) 

 Citizen apathy (lack of trust in local government) 

 “Kicking the can” (continuing to postpone dealing with issues) 

 Lack of County resources for technology, adult education 

 No plan for growth 

 #5 State ranking for fiscal stress 

 Limited water due to DEQ regulations 

 Job creation 

 Health care (County is a food desert) 

 Division in the County (east/west along VA35) 

 Poverty (land rich/money poor) 

 Taxes (too low) 

 Impact of state actions (prisons, landfill) 

 No local land use ordinance 

 

The Board of Supervisors identified the following issues during their work session (2/2)– 

 

OPPORTUNITIES for the County  – 

 

 Identify new revenue streams 

 Dealing with solar 

 Meet with state legislative delegation 

 Consider a minerals tax 

 Consider a meals tax 



 

Page 3 - Minutes of the January 25, 2024 Special Meeting of the Board of Supervisors 

 

 Consider joining Hampton Roads EDC 

 Consider establishing a satellite community college campus 

 Rotate Board of Supervisors’ meetings to various County sites 

 Provide information to all Board members for more informed decisions 

 Review, update, and approve Board rules and procedures 

 Have a representative from each district on County water authority to ensure balance 

 Agritourism 

 Nottoway River recreation 

 

THREATS for the County to be aware of – 

 

 State and Federal Government mandates 

 Citizens’ lack of understanding of the role of local government 

 Climate change (more frequent flooding/storms) 

 Potential loss of revenue from landfill 

 Decline in public school enrollment (ADM) 

 Decline in population and tax base 

 Challenges with foster care and CSA 

 County Public Service Authority continued viability 

 EMS – increase in costs/decrease in volunteers 

 Increase in crime in the County 

 

The Board of Supervisors identified the following objectives for the next six to twelve months – 

 

 Stony Creek WWTP 

 Transportation for seniors (medical, meals, etc.) 

 Planning District Commission (Director to meet with Board of Supervisors) 

 Early childhood education 

 Hampton Roads EDC 

 Develop plans for new Fire/EMS facility 

 Develop plans for new County Courthouse offices 

 Potential land acquisition (to be discussed in closed session) 

 Revisit County’s tax structure 

 Discuss provision of parks & recreation service 

 Consider needs of Sheriff’s office, other Constitutional offices 

 

Item 7.  Citizens’ Comments 

 

Comments were heard from Sheriff Giles. 

 

Item 8.  Adjournment 

 

By general consensus, the January 25, 2024 Board of Supervisors Strategic Planning Session 

adjourned at 5:30 p.m. 



  

 

1 | Page – Minutes of February 1, 2024 Special (Rescheduled) Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

At a Regular Meeting of the 

Sussex County Board of Supervisors 

Held in the General District Courtroom on 

Thursday, February 1, 2024 at 6 pm 

 

 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT 

Thomas W. Baicy, III 

C. Eric Fly, Sr.   

A. G. Futrell 

Wayne O. Jones 

Phyllis T. Tolliver 

Rufus E. Tyler, Sr. 

Steve E. White 

 

STAFF PRESENT: 

Richard Douglas, County Administrator 

Danielle Powell, County Attorney 

Ellen G. Boone, Commissioner of the Revenue 

John Broderick, Director of Finance and Operations 

Deste J. Cox, Treasurer 

Ernest Giles, Sheriff 

Julius Hamlin, Division Superintendent of the Public Schools 

Michael Kessinger, Sergeant 

Kelly W. Moore, Finance Director 

Raven Parham, Deputy Treasurer 

Nick Sheffield, Emergency Services Chief 

Regina Sykes, Commonwealth’s Attorney 

Gary Williams, Circuit Court Clerk 

Shilton R. Butts, Assistant to the County Administrator/ 

 Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 

1.  Commencement  
 

There was no audio of meeting.  Minutes from notes. 

 

1.01  Call to Order/Determine Quorum (6:08 p.m.) 

 

Chairman W. Jones called the February 1, 2024 Special (Rescheduled) meeting of the Sussex 

County Board of Supervisors to order. 

 

1.02  The Invocation 

 

The Invocation was offered by Supervisor Tyler. 

 

1.03  The Pledge of Allegiance 

 



  

 

2 | Page – Minutes of February 1, 2024 Special (Rescheduled) Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited by all. 

 

1.04  BOS Organizational Meeting for Calendar Year 2024 

 

Chairman Jones turned the meeting over to County Attorney Powell. 

 

a.  Election of Chairman for Calendar Year 2024 

 

County Attorney Powell opened the floor for nominations for the Chairman of Board of 

Supervisors for Calendar Year 2024.  

 

Supervisor Tyler nominated Wayne Jones for Chairman of the Board of Supervisors for Calendar 

Year 2024. 

 

There being no other nominations submitted, County Attorney Powell closed with said name of 

Wayne Jones for Chairman. 

 

Roll call vote was taken: 

 

Supervisor Baicy  Aye   Supervisor Tolliver  Aye 

Supervisor Fly   Aye   Supervisor Tyler  Aye 

Supervisor Futrell  Aye   Supervisor White  Aye 

Supervisor Jones  Aye  

 

Supervisor Jones is the Chairman of the Board of Supervisors for Calendar Year 2024. 

 

County Attorney Powell turned the meeting over to Chairman Jones. 

 

b.  Election of Vice Chairman for Calendar Year 2024 

 

Chairman Jones opened the floor for nominations for Vice Chairman of the Board of Supervisors 

for Calendar Year 2024. 

 

Supervisor Futrell nominated Steve White for Vice Chairman of the Board of Supervisors for 

Calendar 2024. 

 

Chairman Jones closed with the said name of Steve White for Vice Chairman. 

 

A roll call vote was taken. 

 

Supervisor Baicy  Aye   Supervisor Tolliver  Aye 

Supervisor Fly   Aye   Supervisor Tyler  Aye 

Supervisor Futrell  Aye   Supervisor White  Aye 

Supervisor Jones  Aye  

 

Supervisor White is the Vice Chairman of the Board of Supervisors for Calendar Year 2024. 



  

 

3 | Page – Minutes of February 1, 2024 Special (Rescheduled) Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

 

c.   Establishment of dates, times and place of regular meetings 

 

There was no change of dates, times and place of regular meetings.  The regular meetings will 

remain the 3rd Thursday of each month at 6:00 p.m. in the Sussex Judicial Center General District 

Courtroom located at 15098 Courthouse Road, Sussex, Virginia 23884. 

 

d.Adoption of Rules and Procedures 

 

There was discussion of rescheduling the February 15, 2024 regular meeting to February 22, 2024. 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR JONES, seconded by SUPERVISOR FUTRELL and carried:  

RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves rescheduling the 

February 15, 2024 regular meeting to February 22, 2024 at 6 p.m. 

Voting aye:  Supervisors Futrell, Jones, Tolliver, White 

Voting nay:  Supervisors Baicy, Fly 

Abstained:  Supervisor Tyler 

 

There was discussion of cancelling the June meeting. 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR TYLER, seconded by SUPERVISOR TOLLIVER and carried:  

RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves postponing the 

adoption of the Rules and Procedures until next meeting.  All Board members present voted aye. 

 

Audio recording started. 

 

1.04  Agenda Amendments 

 

Supervisor Futrell requested to add under Item 11, Closed Session, as Item 11.01 Real Property. 

 

Supervisor Fly requested to add under Item 8, as Item 8.01 Stony Creek Rescue Squad. 

 

1.05  Approval of Regular Agenda 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR FUTRELL, seconded by SUPERVISOR WHITE and carried:  

RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approved the February 1, 2024 

Special (Rescheduled) meeting agenda inclusive of adding as Item 8, as Item 8.01 Stony Creek 

Rescue Squad and Item 11, Closed Session, as Item 11.01 Real Property.  All Board members 

present voted aye. 

 

2. Approval of Consent Agenda 

  



  

 

4 | Page – Minutes of February 1, 2024 Special (Rescheduled) Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR FLY, seconded by SUPERVISOR TYLER and carried:  

RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves the Consent agenda 

inclusive of the following: (a) December 21, 2023 Meeting minutes; (b) the Approval of Warrants 

and Vouchers; (c) the Treasurer’s Report and Financial Update; (d) Departmental Reports; (e) 

Treasurer Certification – Budget Amendment; (f) Ambulance Equipment/Supplies Outfitting 

Budget Amendment; (g) DMV Select ADA Compliance Restrooms Budget Amendment; (h) and, 

(i) Sheriff’s Vehicle Budget Amendment.  All Board members present voted aye. 

 

3.  Recognitions/Awards/Presentation 

 

3.01 FY22-23 Audit 

 

Taylor Stover, auditor for Robinson, Farmer, Cox Associates, provided the summary of the Annual 

Financial Report for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 (FY23 Annual Financial Report. 

 

Mr. Stover stated that overall the audit went very well.  He reviewed the three opinions on the 

report.  Copies of the audit were provided to the Board members.26:48 

 

302 Introduction of Superintendent Dr. Julius Hamlin 

 

Dr. Julius Hamlin, recently appointed Superintendent for Sussex County Schools, was introduced.   

 

Dr. Hamlin stated that it was good to be back home.  He was excited.  He stated that the schools 

will continue to work with the citizens to push their children forward.   

 

Staff have had positive interaction with Dr. Hamlin to begin his tenure and look forward to the 

opportunity to a great working relationship between County Administration and the School 

System.  

 

3.03  Resolution: Recognition of Ms. Arizona Sims-Curly’s Retirement  

 

Sheriff Giles recognized Sergeant Sims-Curly on her retirement on January 1, 2024 after 19 years 

with the Virginia Department of Corrections and six years of service with the Sheriff’s 

Department.    

 

The Sheriff’s Department, her co-workers, the Board, and County Administration would like to 

express our appreciation and extend our congratulations to Ms. Arizona Sims-Curly on her 

retirement. 

 

Sgt. Sims-Curly thanked the Sheriff and the Board for the opportunity of working for the Sheriff’s 

office and the County. 

 

The following resolution was presented to Sgt. Sims-Curley:  

 

WHEREAS, Arizona Elizabeth Sims-Curley began her career in corrections with the 

Virginia Department of Corrections 19 years prior to being hired by Sheriff R. R. Bell; and 



  

 

5 | Page – Minutes of February 1, 2024 Special (Rescheduled) Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

 

WHEREAS, Arizona Sims-Curley was hired with the Sussex County Sheriff’s Office on 

03/06/2017 as an E-911 Communications / Correctional Deputy; and 

 

WHEREAS, she rose quickly in rank to the position of Sergeant on 02/01/2022 under Sheriff 

E.L. Giles, Sr.; and 

 

WHEREAS, Sergeant Sims-Curley often refers to her appreciation of having an 

opportunity/stimulation our positive culture and for promotion and professional advancement 

given; and 

 

WHEREAS, She often stressed the wonderful professionals and colleagues that she has met 

while serving and protecting the Community she loves. 

 

BE IT RESOLVED Sergeant Sims-Curley retired from the Sheriff’s Office on 01/01/2024 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby 

recognizes and congratulates Ms. Arizona Sims-Curly on her retirement and wishes her the best in 

her future endeavors. 

  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of this Resolution be spread upon the minutes of 

this Board meeting this 18th day of January, 2024.  By general consensus, the resolution was 

adopted. 

 

3.04 Recognition of First Responders January 11th Water Rescue Event 

 

Emergency Services Chief Sheffield was in attendance to recognize the First Responders for the 

January 11th Water Rescue Event.  

 

He stated a few weeks prior there was a flood in the County.  On January 11, 2024 just before 

midnight, a call was received in the Communications Center for a vehicle that was in the water on 

Courthouse Road.  Upon arrival, it was found that the truck was partially submerged on the driver’s 

side, off the shoulder of the roadway. They didn’t know if anyone was in the vehicle.  Sergeant 

Marks, Deputy Sheriff Phillips, and Sussex Courthouse engine arrived.  Stony Creek was on the 

way with an engine and a boat, as well Stony Creek Volunteer Rescue Squad.  The Sheriff’s 

Department had a drone, which was deployed to get a visual as to whether there was someone in 

the vehicle.   

 

Chief Wyatt was able to make its way to the vehicle with the fire engine.  They were able to access 

the patient, remove the patient from the vehicle, and return the patient to the staging area, where 

the patient was turned over to Captain White to give a quick evaluation. 

 

EMS Chief Sheffield stated that fortunately the patient wasn’t hurt. 

 

Mr. Sheffield presented awards of Certificates of Appreciation and two Unit Citations for the 

Sheriff's and Fire Department.  Certificates were presented to Stony Creek Fire Department 



  

 

6 | Page – Minutes of February 1, 2024 Special (Rescheduled) Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

Firefighter Randy Foster and Ryan Gunn, Sussex Courthouse VFD Chief Wyatt Cox, Sheriff's 

Office Deputy Bristol Phillips and Sergeant Richard Marks, Lieutenant Shenika Hicks, Dispatcher 

Tashonda Jones, Stony Creek VRS Captain Steve White, Sussex VFD Gerald Parham II,  

Courthouse VFD Assistant Chief Ricky Matthews, Firefight David Barnes, Firefighter Doug Dunn 

and Firefighter Ted Harrell. 

 

3.05 Recognition of Certified Deputy Treasurer  

 

Treasurer Deste Cox recognized Deputy Treasurer Raven Parham for recently receiving the Master 

Governmental Deputy Treasurer certification through the Treasurers’ Association of Virginia. 

This certification program for Treasurers and Deputy Treasurer is designed to advance the 

professionalism of the local governmental Treasurer and staff in Virginia.  With Ms. Parham’s 

certification, the Treasurer and both Deputy Treasurers are now certified.   

 

No action was requested, but an accompanying request for a state-mandated salary increase was 

included on the consent agenda.  

 

3.06 Sussex Chamber of Commerce Update/2024 Overview  

 

Jesse Hellyer, President of Sussex County Chamber of Commerce, provided an update and 2024 

overview. 

 

He stated that the Chamber of Commerce is a group of individuals that represent local businesses 

throughout the County.   

 

He stated that last year they not only met their goal, they exceeded it.  At the end of 2023, the 

Chamber had 90 active members.  He noted that one of their final members was Supervisor Baicy, 

who joined as an individual.   

 

Mr. Hellyer introduced the Chamber of Commerce Board, not all were present:  Supervisor 

Tolliver is the Chamber’s Vice President; Lydia Pittman - Treasurer (Virginia Diner); Sherry Olsen 

– Secretary (Schultz’s Lawnscapes); Lynn Babish - Technology Director (Hometown Web 

Designs); Darius Conner - Board of Directors (DC's DJ & More Party Rentals); Nick Garrett - 

Wakefield Market; Abby Malcolm (The Art Room); Angela McPhaul (Waverly Mayor); Corey 

Schultz (Shultz Lawnscapes); Phyllis Smallwood (R&A Hilltop Enterprises); and David Conmy 

(County representative). 

 

He  stated that everyone were volunteers. 

 

He noted different events sponsored/hosted such as: Ms. Sussex; offer a scholarship to a graduating 

senior; back-to-school breakfasts; supported Waverly 5K;  Cinco De Mayo celebration and 

Octoberfest in Waverly; hosted a Peanut and Harvest festival in Wakefield; and Candidate Forum. 

 

He stated that the Chamber was represented at the Virginia Tobacco Commission Reception.  Two 

Chamber Boards members attended Chamber Day on the Hill; met with Dr. Hamlin with the 

schools; and met with Waverly website/Facebook page manager. 



  

 

7 | Page – Minutes of February 1, 2024 Special (Rescheduled) Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

 

He stated that Dr. Tolliver is in charge of scholarships for the Chamber.  She will be sending 

information to all graduating seniors in Sussex for a $500 scholarship.  On February 21, they will 

be helping schools with their first 3E Day, focusing on enrollment, enlistment and employment. 

 

The Chamber will be hosting a poll decorating contest for Valentine's Day.  In February or March, 

they will be doing a business after hours.  On May 4, they will be celebrating Cinco De Mayo in 

Waverly.  On October 5, they will be hosting an Octoberfest at the Carpenter Museum in Waverly, 

Virginia.  In August, they will hosting back to school breakfasts.  September and October they will 

be hosting a "Meet the Candidate" night.  They will be helping Supervisor Baicy with the Fire and 

Rescue, First Responders night.   

 

He stated that anyone could join the Chamber of Commerce, a business or individual. 

 

4.  Public Hearings 
 

There was no Public Hearing. 

 

5.  Appointments  
 

5.01 Appointments to Sussex Service Authority Board (2) 

 

County Administrator Douglas stated that the Sussex Service Authority had two appointments for 

the At-Large Citizen representative appointment, as well as an Elected (Board) Official 

representative appointment for the Sussex Service Authority Board.  The elected appointments 

would begin January 1 and end December 31, 2026. 

 

He stated that each representative could have an alternate, if the Board so desired.  Their terms 

would run concurrent. An appointment for an alternate didn't have to be made.   

 

It was noted that alternate appointment would be done at the next meeting. 

 

A copy of the resolution of the Board of Supervisors appointing members to the Sussex Service 

Authority, SCC Articles of Incorporation (Exhibit A) and Terms (Exhibit B) were provided to the 

Board members. 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR JONES, seconded by SUPERVISOR FLY and carried:  

RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby appoints Supervisor Baicy to 

serve as elected official representative on the Sussex Service Authority Board.  All Board members 

present voted aye. 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR FLY, seconded by SUPERVISOR BAICY and carried:  

RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby appoints Susan Seward as the 

At-Large Citizen representative to the Sussex Service Authority Board; to-wit: 

 



  

 

8 | Page – Minutes of February 1, 2024 Special (Rescheduled) Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR WHITE, seconded by SUPERVISOR TOLLIVER and carried:  

RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby adopts the Resolution 

appointing members to the Sussex Services Authority; to-wit: 

 

 WHEREAS, the Sussex Service Authority (“SSA”) was created by the Towns of 

Wakefield, Waverly, Stony Creek, and the County of Sussex (“County”) and received its 

Certificate of Incorporation by the State Corporation Commission in 1997; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the Articles of Incorporation states, “The powers of the Authority shall be 

exercised by the board (the “Board”) consisting of five members: one member to be appointed by 

the respective Governing Body of each Incorporating Subdivision and the fifth member to be 

appointed by the Board of Supervisors of Sussex County, Virginia. The Governing Bodies may 

appoint only non-elected public citizens to the Board, with the exception that one of the two 

members appointed by the Board of Supervisors of Sussex, County, Virginia shall be an elected 

official of the County;” and  

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to State Code and the SSA’s bylaws, no member shall be appointed 

for a term of more than four years; and  

 

 WHEREAS, according to the articles of incorporation, the terms of the initial appointments 

for the elected official and the citizen (at-large) representative ended December 31, 1998 and 

December 31, 1999, respectively as demonstrated in Exhibit A; and  

 

 WHEREAS, upon completion of the initial term for both the elected official representative 

and the citizen (at-large) representative, the terms going forward are as outlined in Exhibit A; and  

 

 WHEREAS, relevant law dictates that members appointed to the SSA may be appointed 

only for the duration of an unexpired term and may not be appointed for a full four years unless 

appointments are made effective January 1 of a specific year as outlined in Exhibit B; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors desires to comply with relevant law by appointing 

individuals to the SSA for a term to begin January 1 and end December 31 in accordance with 

Exhibit B. 

 

Name:  Susan Seward   January 1, 2024 to December 31, 2027 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board of Supervisors hereby 

appoints the person listed below as the elected official to the SSA with the term as indicated: 

Elected Official Representative: 

 

Name:  Thomas W. Baicy, III  January 1, 2023 to December 31, 2026  

 

Adopted by the Board of Supervisors February 1, 2024.  

Voting aye:  Supervisors Baicy, Fly, Futrell, Jones, Tolliver, Tyler, White 

Voting nay:  none 

 



  

 

9 | Page – Minutes of February 1, 2024 Special (Rescheduled) Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

6.  Action Items 

 

6.01 Health Department Adjusted Funding Request 

 

A copy of the FY24 agreement between the Virginia Department of Health (VDH) and Sussex 

County, as proposed by VDH based on the amended state budget, is attached for your review and 

consideration. This agreement addresses local funding for operations of the Sussex County Health 

Department, but a funding request was not provided by VDH as part of the FY24 county budget 

preparations. The proposed FY24 agreement is $21,826 more than the FY23 agreement, or a total 

of $153,550 for the fiscal year. While the Board of Supervisors typically appropriates funds to 

cover the proposed funding amount and this agreement is handled administratively, sufficient 

funds will need to be appropriated to cover the $21,826 difference. In previous years the Board of 

Supervisors has raised concerns over the level of staffing and service to Sussex County, and the 

permanent closure of the office during the pandemic, and withheld some payment to VDH as a 

result.  

 

Staff recommends that the Health Department be funded at the previously budgeted FY23 levels.  

 

A copy of the Proposed FY24 funding agreement at the previously budgeted FY23 levels.  

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR FLY, seconded by SUPERVISOR TOLLIVER and carried:  

RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisor hereby funds the Health Department at 

the previously budgeted FY23 Levels, no increase (level funding).  All Board members present 

voted aye. 

 

7.  Citizens’ Comments 

 

Millard "Pete" Stith (Chesterfield from Jarratt) - Congratulated returning Board members and new 

Board members; condolences to Supervisor Tolliver; Coalition thanked the Board for purchase of 

the School; donated check to the County for Fire/Rescue banquet (handed check to Treasurer); 

authorized School to donate $500 from the Stith family scholarship fund 

 

Yvonne Williams (Waverly District) – Solar Farms concerns to rural County:  impact on character; 

wildlife, agricultural soils; water run-off - disturb agricultural production; property values of 

connecting properties; how County benefits; jobs; limit number of solar farms erected. 

 

Franklin Cox (Waverly District/Town Councilmember) - Congratulated three new members and 

thanked them for serving; spoke to three new Board members - Sheriff's support - shooting range. 

 

Susan Stone (Wakefield District) - Provided a photograph to the Board - expanse of Solar panels. 

 

Leverette Pope (Waverly District) - Solar Farms -traffic; moratorium for Solar Panels/Farm; one 

grocery store in County; consider other industry to help growth; no more solar panels. 

 

Frances Joyner-Chambers (Wakefield District/Wakefield Town Council) - Congratulated 

members; Speaking of behalf of Town of Wakefield - mailed/presented letters at meeting from 



  

 

10 | Page – Minutes of February 1, 2024 Special (Rescheduled) Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

Town Attorney in opposition of potential Solar Farm outside the Town of Wakefield; resolution 

of specifics; 3 mile radius (Comp Plan); CUP; stand up for opposer's rights. 

 

Molly Dowless (Wakefield District) - welcomed new Board members; Solar Farms; Comp Plan; 

Ordinance; Blackwater project; placement of Solar facilities in appropriate places; HB636; asked 

Board to vote "no". 

 

Franklin Dowless (Wakefield District) - Thanked Board members for their service; represent 

interest of citizens of Sussex; asked to vote "no" for Blackwater project. 

 

Bernie Camper (Sussex County) - Solar farms - not good. 

 

Laine Chambers (Wakefield District) - Solar development in Sussex County and current projects; 

oversight/monitoring of construction as permitted; revenue earmarked or general fund; planning 

commission review current permits 

 

Monica Strong (Sussex County) - Solar farms; independent research; owned solar equipment. 

 

Sharon Rogers Moore (Wakefield District) - Historic property; Solar project - faces front door; 

choose citizens, other things are more important to citizens than money. 

 

Kevin Bracy (Yale District) - Congratulate new and returning Board members; County leadership; 

employees; Berkley and Timmons Groups; Repair Administration building; Planning 

Commission. 

 

8.  Unfinished Business  
 

8.01 Stony Creek Rescue Squad  

 

Supervisor Fly tabled until the next meeting. 

  

9.  New Business 

 

There was no New Business. 

 

10.  Board Member Comments 
 

10.01  Blackwater District – none 

 

10.02 Courthouse District – Thanked everyone for support during family time of bereavement; 

pleasure to serve on Board next four years; Solar Farm meetings - pros and cons.  

 

10.03 Henry District – absent 

 

10.04 Stony Creek District – Ideas - Maintenance Program for structures before spending; other 

options; Administration building; Solar farm; Sheriff's Department. 



  

 

11 | Page – Minutes of February 1, 2024 Special (Rescheduled) Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

 

10.05 Wakefield District – Thanked Board for nominating for Chairman again; transparent to 

citizens; every 

 

10.06  Waverly District – Transparency; Anti-Solar Farms 

 

10.07 Yale - Welcomed everyone; thanked citizens in Yale District for vote and support; 

constituents 

 

11. Closed Session 

 

11.01 Convene to Closed Session 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR FLY, seconded by SUPERVISOR WHITE and carried:  

RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors convene to Closed Session to (1)  

discussion or disposition the conveyance of publicly held real property, where discussion in an 

open meeting would adversely affect the bargaining position or negotiating strategy of the public 

body, applicable Virginia Code Section 2.2-3711(A)3,  real property.  All Board members present 

voted aye. 

 

11.02/03  Reconvene to Open Session/Certification 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR BAICY, seconded by SUPERVISOR TOLLIVER and carried:  

 

RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby reconvened to Open Session; 

and  

 

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT that that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors convened a 

Closed Meeting on this date pursuant to an affirmative recorded vote in accordance with the 

provisions of the Virginia Freedom of Information Act; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves adoption of resolution for 

certification, to-wit:  

 

WHEREAS, that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors convened a Closed Meeting on this date 

pursuant to an affirmative recorded vote in accordance with the provisions of the Virginia Freedom 

of Information Act; and  

 

WHEREAS, Section 2.2-3712 of the Code of Virginia, as amended, requires a certification by the 

Board that such Closed Meeting was conducted inconformity with Virginia law.  

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Supervisors hereby certifies that, to 

the best of each member’s knowledge (i) only public business matters lawfully exempted from 

Open Meeting requirements by Virginia law were discussed in the Closed Meeting to which this 

certification resolution applies, and (ii) only such public business matters as were identified in the 

motion convening the Closed Meeting were heard discussed or considered. 



  

 

12 | Page – Minutes of February 1, 2024 Special (Rescheduled) Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

Voting aye:  Supervisors Baicy, Fly, Futrell, Jones, Tolliver, White 

Voting nay:  none 

Absent during vote:  Supervisor Tyler 

 

11.04 Action Resulting from Closed Session, if any 

 

There was no action on the Closed Session item. 

 

12.  Adjournment 

 

12.01 Adjournment 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR FUTRELL, seconded by SUPERVISOR TOLLIVER and 

carried:  RESOLVED that the February 1, 2024 special (rescheduled) meeting of the Sussex 

County Board of Supervisors hereby adjourned at 8:45 p.m.  All Board members present voted 

aye. 

 

12.02 Next Meeting 

 

The next regular (special) Board of Supervisors meeting is scheduled to be held, Thursday, 

February 22, 2024 at 6 p.m. 



  

 

1 | Page – Minutes of February 8, 2024 Special (BWS) Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

At a Special (BWS) Meeting of the  

Sussex County Board of Supervisors 

Held in the Social Services Conference on 

Thursday, February 8, 2024 at 6 pm 

 

 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT 

Thomas W. Baicy, III 

C. Eric Fly, Sr.   

A. G. Futrell 

Wayne O. Jones 

Phyllis T. Tolliver 

Rufus E. Tyler, Sr. 

Steve E. White 

 

STAFF PRESENT: 

Richard Douglas, County Administrator 

David Conmy, Deputy County Administrator/ 

 Economic Development Director 

Debbie Broughton, Animal Services Director 

Deste J. Cox, Treasurer 

Jeffrey Gary, Public Works Director 

Ernest Giles, Sheriff 

Felicia Hartman, Chief Attorney 

Michael Kessinger, Sergeant 

Kelly W. Moore, Finance Director 

Titiana Nicholson, CSA Coordinator 

Laveeta Saunders, Benefits Programs Supervisors 

Nick Sheffield, Emergency Services Chief 

Regina Sykes, Commonwealth’s Attorney 

Tawana Toran, DSS Director 

Jessica Upton, Benefits Programs Supervisors 

Shilton R. Butts, Assistant to the County Administrator/ 

  Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 

 

Item 1.  Call to Order/Determine Quorum (6:08 p.m.) 

 

Chairman W. Jones called the February 8, 2024 Special (BWS) meeting of the Sussex County 

Board of Supervisors to order. 

 

Item 2.  The Invocation 

 

The Invocation was offered by Supervisor White. 

 

Item 3.  The Pledge of Allegiance 

 



  

 

2 | Page – Minutes of February 8, 2024 Special (BWS) Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited by all. 

 

Item 4.  Agenda Amendments  

 

There were no agenda amendments. 

 

Item 5.  Approval of Agenda 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR WHITE, seconded by SUPERVISOR TYLER and carried:  

RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approved the February 8, 2024 

Special (BWS) meeting agenda as presented. All Board members present voted aye. 

 

Item 6.  Budget Discussions of Department Heads FY24 Big Ticket Items  

             (Personnel, programmatic changes and/or Capital Improvements, Property) 

 

County Administrator Douglas stated that if Big Tickets items were not presented at this Budget 

Work Session, it will not be considered.  He also noted that this was just a presented.  No items 

would be considered for approval at this meeting. 

  

Jeffrey Gary, Public Works Director, presented the following Big Ticket requests: 

 

 1.  8 x 16 Enclosed Trailer for Road Sign Installation ($16,500) 

 2.  Public Safety Building – Replace 3 Zones of HVAC ($35,000) 

 3.  F-350 crew cab 4x4 Pickup ($55,000) 

 4.  Waverly Convenience Site – Complete Roadway Repairs ($35,000) 

 5.  Replace HVAC at Health Department ($34,000) 

 6.  Paint and wallpaper corridors at Courthouse ($35,000) 

  7.  Provide funding to assess failed gutter system (TBD) 

 8.  Replace HVAC Control panel and sensors at Courthouse ($45,000) 

 9.  Replace generator switchgear and panel at Courthouse ($35,000) 

        10.  Add concrete ramp for ADA compliance-BoE required ($35,000) 

               (Public Safety Building) 

 

Tawana Toran, DSS Director, presented the following items for Big Ticket request for salary 

increases for DSS Positions to align salaries ($380,000). 

 

Titiana Nicholson, CSA Coordinator, presented the following Big Ticket request for a 

Management Specialist Position ($51,268.96 - $74,350.56). 

 

Debbie Broughton, Animal Services Director, presented the following items for Big Ticket 

requests. 

 1.  Salary Increase ($5,800) 

 2.  FT Kennel Attendant – 1 more ($38,000) 

 3.  One Additional Sworn ACO ($45,000) 

 4.  One Used Truck/Van for Officer ($45,000) 

 5.  Used/New Truck to Replace F-150 2018  ($55,000) 



  

 

3 | Page – Minutes of February 8, 2024 Special (BWS) Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

      (132,000 miles) 

 6.  Used/New Explorer to Replace 2018 Explorer ($60,000) 

      (123,000 miles) 

 7.  New/Used Van to Replace 2020 Cayo Van ($45,000) 

      (38,000 miles) 

 

Regina Sykes, Commonwealth’s Attorney, presented the following Big Ticket requests for  

salary supplement for staff  ($30,000) and updated Criminal Case Management System. 

 

David Conmy, Deputy County Administrator/Economic Development Director, presented the 

following Big Ticket items for Economic Development budget ($105,500) growing the 

Economic Development budget for County.  He provided a table of what funds could be used 

for:  

 

1. Website for Megasite 

2. Marketing Material 

3. IEDC Classes 

4. Training/Conference/Memberships 

 

Ernest Giles, Sheriff, presented the following Big Ticket requests: 

 

 1.  Holiday Payout ($292,381) 

 2.  Vehicles – Lease Program              ($598,334.03) 

       6 SUVs &4 Pickup Trucks  

 3.  Jail Building Repairs ($61,932.74) 

 4.  Personnel Salary Increases ($4,910.17) 

  5.  Investigative Tools ($106,650.58) 

 

Nick Sheffield, Chief of Fire & Rescue, presented the following Big Ticket requests 

 

 1.  Reclassify EMS Supervisor Contract Staff position ($43,424.490 

 2.  10 Sets of Turnout Gear for Firefighters ($35,000) 

 3.  Purchase another staff vehicle and camper shell ($70,000) 

 4.  Narcotics Storage System – associated equipment & supplies ($26,000) 

 

A packet of the Big Ticket items were provided to the Board members. 

 

Item 7.  Citizens’ Comments 

 

There were no citizens’ comments. 

 

Supervisor Futrell department at 9:06 p.m. 

 

Item 8.  Adjournment 

 



  

 

4 | Page – Minutes of February 8, 2024 Special (BWS) Meeting of Board of Supervisors 

 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR TOLLIVER, seconded by SUPERVISOR WHITE and carried:  

RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby adjourned the February 8, 2024 

Special meeting at 9:12 p.m. 



2.02

sricks
Highlight



























2.03

Consent Agenda - Page 1

sricks
Highlight



Consent Agenda Items - Page 2



Consent Agenda Items - Page 3



Consent Agenda Items - Page 4



Consent Agenda Items - Page 5



BUILDING 

INSPECTIONS 

DEPARTMENT 

  February 22, 2024 

Monthly Reports 

2.04 

Consent Agenda Items - Page 6



Building department  County of Sussex, Virginia  

MATT WESTHEIMER , mcp, cbo    P. O. Box 1397 Sussex, Virginia 23884 

building official    Fax (434) 246-8259 

(434) 246-4390

Sussexcountyva.gov 

MEMORANDUM 

DATE:  February 1, 2024 

TO: Richard Douglas, County Administrator 

FROM: Matt Westheimer, Building Official    

SUBJECT: January 2024 - Monthly Report 

Please accept this as the January 2024 update for the Building Department. 

BUILDING ACTIVITY  

 January 2024

Building 

Permits 

Electrical 

Permits 

Plumbing & 

Sprinkler 

Permits 

Mechanical 

Permits 

Field 

Inspections 

Improvement 

Value 

Revenue 

Generated 

12 13 4 9 85 $660,196.41 $7,235.89 

 January 2023

Building 

Permits 

Electrical 

Permits 

Plumbing & 

Sprinkler 

Permits 

Mechanical 

Permits 

Field 

Inspections 

Improvement 

Value 

Revenue 

Generated 

13 14 6 11 50 $1,325,811.27 $11,018.21 

 January 2024 – December 2024 (Yearly totals)

Building 

Permits 

Electrical 

Permits 

Plumbing & 

Sprinkler 

Permits 

Mechanical 

Permits 

Field 

Inspections 

Improvement 

Value 

Revenue 

Generated 

12 13 4 9 85 $660,196.41 $7,235.89 

Inspections completed within 24 hours For January 100% 

Plans reviewed within 10 business days For January 100% 

Consent Agenda Items - Page 7



SUSSEX COUNTY

INSPECTIONS PERFORMED BY DISTRICT

JANUARY 2024

DISTRICT INSPECTIONS

BLACKWATER 11

COURTHOUSE 7

WAVERLY 18

STONY CREEK 30

WAKEFIELD 4

HENRY 6

YALE 9

BLACKWATER
13%

COURTHOUSE
8%

WAVERLY
21%

STONY CREEK
35%

WAKEFIELD
5%

HENRY
7%

YALE
11%

INSPECTIONS BY DISTRICT

Consent Agenda Items - Page 8



Sheriff’s Department

February 22, 2024 

Monthly Reports 

Consent Agenda Items - Page 9



Consent Agenda Items - Page 10



Consent Agenda Items - Page 11



 

Planning Department 
 

 

 

 

February 22, 2024 
 

Monthly Reports 

 
 

 
Consent Agenda Items – Page 12 



Planning & Zoning Department 

Monthly Report for January 2024 

Community Development 
Current Developments 

 Waverly Solar 

 Pit Crew 

 Waverly RNG Project 

 IUOE Crane Training Facility 

 Dollar General 

 Sussex Youth and Adult Recreation 

Association Improvements 

Pending Developments 

o Stony Creek Shell Diesel Island 

o Evergreen Acres “Section 2”  

o Blackwater Outdoor Range 

o WAWA 

Grant Administration 
Pocahontas Neighborhood  

 Seven (7) housing projects have been 

completed under the Pocahontas project, 

including three (3) substantial 

reconstructions and four (4) housing 

rehabilitations.   

 One (1) substantial reconstruction near 

completion. 

 One (1) demolition project anticipated to 

begin. 

 Drainage Improvement is pending Phase II 

funding. 

 

 

Planning Commission 
 Planning Commission met on January 8, 2024 to 

discuss the process of updating the Capital 

Improvement Plan. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Permits Issued 

January 
• Screened Porch 

• Two (2) Single family dwelling 

• Shed 

• Livestock shelter 

One (1) New Addresses has being assigned on Peters 

Bridge Road. 

Proposed Solar Project Applications in 

Review 
o Blackwater Solar 

• Solar Developer: Clenera, LLC 

• Located within the Wakefield 

District 

o Cassius Blue Solar 

• Solar Developer: Geenex Solar 
• Located within the Henry District 

Erosion & Sediment Control 
 Monthly Land Disturbance Report to DEQ 

up-to-date 

 Ten (10) commercial projects are active in 

being inspected within a two-week period or 

after each significant rainfall when possible. 

 Eight (7) Agreement in Lieu of an ESC Plan 

for a single family residences projects which 

are inspected periodically. 

 



BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item:   Recognitions #3.01 

Subject:  VDOT District Update – George Bowman, VDOT Franklin Residency 

Board Meeting Date:  February 22 2024 

============================================================================== 

Summary:   George Bowman, Assistant Residency Administrator for VDOT’s Franklin Residency, 
will be introduced and present a general update on the following: 

 consideration of transferring $135,000 remaining in Glyndon-Carver project budget to
another unpaved road project— a portion of Butts Road in the Yale District (see attached
map) is recommended (formal approval by resolution would be required at a future
meeting)

 planned update of the county six-year plan

 identification of road safety project

 status of the Route 35/Route 40 roundabout

 other general updates

Recommendation:  N/A 

Attachment: Butts Road map 

============================================================================= 

ACTION:  No immediate action requested. 

MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________     

Member Aye Nay Member Aye Nay 

Baicy ___ ___ Tolliver ___ ___ 

Fly ___ ___ Tyler ___ ___ 

Futrell ___ ___ White ___ ___ 

W. Jones ___ ___ 

Recognitions - Page 1



132 ft

Hornet Swamp

Spring
Creek

River To
wn Rd

Butts Rd

Sm
it
hs

L n

R
ow

eham
pton

Rd

Gr
ay

Rd

123 ft

130 ft

H
orne

t
Sw

am
p
Rd

Row
eham

pton
Rd

107 ft

Raccoon C reek

River Town Rd

Butts Rd

Popes Station Rd

Cham

pion RdC
ou

rthouse
Rd

Three Creeks Rd

121 ft

Hornet Swamp

R
O

W
E

H
A

M
P

T
O

N
 R

D

CHAMPION RD

C
O

U
R

T
H

O
U

S
E

 R
D

CHAM
PIO

N RD

BUTTS RD

C
O

U
R

T
H

O
U

S
E

 R
D

R
O

W
EH

A
M

PTO
N

 R
D

RIVER TOWN RD

RIV
ER TOW

N R
D

BUTTS RDBUTTS RD

Rt. 609-Butts Road (From Rt. 735- Courthouse Road to Rt. 697-Rowehampton Road)

VGIN, Esri, TomTom, Garmin, SafeGraph, GeoTechnologies, Inc, METI/
NASA, USGS, EPA, NPS, US Census Bureau, USDA, USFWS, Esri, NASA,

Proposed Road Paving

Roads

County Boundary

2/13/2024, 5:19:33 PM
0 0.5 10.25 mi

0 0.75 1.50.38 km

1:36,112

ArcGIS Web AppBuilder

Esri, NASA, NGA, USGS, FEMA | Esri Community Maps Contributors, VGIN, Esri, TomTom, Garmin, SafeGraph, GeoTechnologies, Inc, METI/NASA, USGS, EPA, NPS, US Census Bureau, USDA, USFWS | Virginia Geographic Information Network (VGIN) |

Recognitions - Page 2



BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item:   Recognitions #3.02 

Subject:  Blackwater Regional Library Update – Ben Neal, Library Director 

Board Meeting Date:  February 22 2024 

============================================================================== 

Summary:   Ben Neal, Library Director for the Blackwater Regional Library, will provide a brief 
update on library activities in Sussex County, accomplishments over the past year, and upcoming 
planned activities.   

Recommendation:  N/A 

Attachment: None 

============================================================================= 

ACTION:  N/A 

MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________     

Member Aye Nay Member Aye Nay 

Baicy ___ ___ Tolliver ___ ___ 

Fly ___ ___ Tyler ___ ___ 

Futrell ___ ___ White ___ ___ 

W. Jones ___ ___ 

Recognitions - Page 3



BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item:   Recognitions #3.03 

Subject:  RESOLUTION:  Ms. Carrie Lee Dobie Delk Gray – 100th Birthday 

Board Meeting Date:  February 22 2024 

============================================================================== 

Summary:   Supervisor Futrell has requested approval of the attached resolution recognizing Ms. 
Carrie Lee Dobie Delk Gray on her 100th birthday on February 13th.   

Ms. Gray is lifelong resident of Piney Grove in Sussex County, Virginia. 

Supervisor Futrell would like to take this opportunity along with the Board members to recognize 
Ms. Gray on this major milestone! 

Recommendation:  That the Board adopts the resolution 

Attachment: A copy of the resolution recognizing Ms. Carrie Lee Dobie Delk Gray 

============================================================================= 

ACTION:  That the Board adopts the resolution 

MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________     

Member Aye Nay Member Aye Nay 

Baicy ___ ___ Tolliver ___ ___ 

Fly ___ ___ Tyler ___ ___ 

Futrell ___ ___ White ___ ___ 

W. Jones ___ ___ 

Recognitions - Page 4



RESOLUTION HONORING 
MS. CARRIE LEE DOBIE DELK GRAY 

WHEREAS, it is fitting that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors 
recognizes those citizens who celebrate venerable milestones in their lives; 
and 

WHEREAS, Ms. Carrie Lee Dobie Delk Gray, celebrated her 100th 
birthday on February 13, 2024, an occasion commemorating great joy and 
accomplishment; and 

WHEREAS, Ms. Gray attended Piney Grove School; and  

WHEREAS, Ms. Gray attends Piney Grove AME Zion church; and 

WHEREAS, she is a member of the Pride of Wakefield Eastern Star 
Chapter; and  

WHEREAS, Ms. Gray was the first cook at Cowlings Barbecue in 
Waverly, Virginia; and  

WHEREAS, in later years to come, Ms. Gray retired from Virginia 
State University in Petersburg, Virginia in 1985; and 

WHEREAS, Ms. Carrie Lee Dobie Delk Gray is a highly independent 
woman who loves flowers, knitting, crocheting, and reading. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Sussex County 
Board of Supervisors hereby honors and congratulates Ms. Carrie Lee 
Dobie Delk Gray on the celebration of her 100th birthday and extend our 
best wishes and many happy returns. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this resolution shall be spread 
upon the Minutes Book of the Sussex County Board of Supervisors 
February 22, 2024 meeting. 

Wayne O. Jones, Chairman 
Sussex County Board of Supervisor 

Recognitions - Page 5



BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item:   Recognitions #3.04 

Subject:  RECOGNITION:  Deputy Bristol Phillips – Sussex Sheriff’s Office 

Board Meeting Date:  February 22 2024 

============================================================================== 

Summary:   Sheriff Giles will recognize Deputy Bristol Phillips for his accomplishment in Impaired 
Driving Enforcement. 

Recommendation:  N/A 

Attachment: Copy of Certificate  

============================================================================= 

ACTION:  N/A 

MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________     

Member Aye Nay Member Aye Nay 

Baicy ___ ___ Tolliver ___ ___ 

Fly ___ ___ Tyler ___ ___ 

Futrell ___ ___ White ___ ___ 

W. Jones ___ ___ 

Recognitions - Page 6



Recognitions - Page 7



BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item: Appointments #5.01 

Subject:   Appointments to the Sussex Service Authority (Alternates) 

Board Meeting Date:  February 22 2024 

============================================================================== 

Summary:  The Board may choose to select alternates for the Sussex Service Authority Board at-
large and elected official appointments made at the January regular meeting. The term of the 
alternate at-large representative (currently filled by Mr. Crowder) runs from January 2024 to 
December 2027.  The term of the alternate elected official representative (currently filled by Mr. 
Morris) runs from January 2023 to December 2026.  A resolution is attached for your 
consideration. Staff recommends that an alternate to the elected official appointment 
(Supervisor Baicy) be another member of the Board of Supervisors.  

Recommendation: To consider resolution appointing alternate at-large and elected official 
representatives to the Sussex Service Authority Board. 

Attachment:  Resolution Appointing Alternates  

============================================================================== 

ACTION:   That the Board appoints a Citizen (At Large) representative to the Sussex Service 
Authority Board and a Citizen (At Large) alternate, will concurrent terms beginning immediately, 
ending December 31, 2027.  

MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________ 

Member Aye Nay Member Aye Nay 

Baicy ___ ___ Tolliver ___ ___ 

Fly ___ ___ Tyler ___ ___ 

Futrell ___ ___ White ___ ___ 

W. Jones ___ ___ 

Appointments - Page 1



AT A REGULARLY SCHEDULED MEETING OF THE SUSSEX COUNTY 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF HELD AT THE COURTHOUSE, ON THE 22ND DAY OF 

FEBRUARY 2024. 

PRESENT: VOTE: 

Wayne O. Jones, Chairman _____ 

Steve E. White, Vice Chairman _____ 

Rufus E. Tyler, Sr. _____ 

C. Eric Fly, Sr. _____ 

Alfred G. Futrell _____ 

Phyllis T. Tolliver _____ 

Thomas W. Baicy, III _____ 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPOINTING ALTERNATE 

MEMBERS TO THE SUSSEX SERVICES AUTHORITY 

WHEREAS, the Sussex Service Authority (“SSA”) was created by the Towns of Wakefield, 

Waverly, Stony Creek, and the County of Sussex (“County”) and received its Certificate of 

Incorporation by the State Corporation Commission in 1997; and  

WHEREAS, the Articles of Incorporation state, “The powers of the Authority shall be exercised 

by the board (the “Board”) consisting of five members: one member to be appointed by the 

respective Governing Body of each Incorporating Subdivision and the fifth member to be 

appointed by the Board of Supervisors of Sussex County, Virginia…and that alternate members 

may be provided for in the Bylaws (emphasis added);” and 

WHEREAS, the SSA’s bylaws allow the appointment of alternates in the same manner as the 

governing body appoints members and the, “term of each alternate shall be the same as that of the 

member for whom he or she has been appointed as alternate; provided, however, that an alternate’s 

term shall not expire because of a member’s death, disqualification, resignation from the Board.”  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Supervisors appoints the person 

named below as the alternate to the citizen (at-large) representative to the SSA with the term as 

indicated: 

Alternate to the Citizen (At-Large) Representative: 

Name:  ______________________ January 1, 2024 to December 31, 2027 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board of Supervisors hereby 

appoints the person listed below as the alternate to the elected official representative to the SSA 

with the term as indicated: 

Appointments - Page 2



Alternate to the Elected Official Representative: 

Name:  ______________________   January 1, 2023 to December 31, 2026 

Adopted by the Board of Supervisors February 22, 2024. 

ATTEST: 

_______________________________________ 

  Chairman, Sussex County Board of Supervisors 

ATTEST: 

_____________________________________ 

Clerk, Board of Supervisors 

Appointments - Page 3



BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item: Appointments #5.02 

Subject:   Recommended Nomination for Appointment to the Board of Zoning Appeals 

Board Meeting Date:  February 22 2024 

============================================================================== 

Summary:  Due to Mr. Baicy’s successful bid for Sussex’s Board of Supervisors, he is no longer 
eligible to serve on the Board of Zoning Appeals (BZA).  State Code prohibits a BZA member from 
serving another public office, except that one member may also serve on the Planning 
Commission. 

As a result, a nomination needs to be made for recommendation to the Circuit Court Judge for 
appointment to fill the unexpired term beginning immediately, ending January 31, 2026.   

Mr. Baicy has recommended Ms. Karen Hines, 12236 Setzer Road, Stony Creek, Virginia 23882, 
for nomination.  Ms. Hines’ application is included the Board packet. 

Recommendation: That the Board nominates Ms. Karen Hines, 12236 Setzer Road, Stony Creek, 
Virginia 23882, for appointment by the Circuit Court Judge to fill the unexpired term beginning 
immediately, ending January 31, 2026.   

Attachments:  Ms. Hines Application; BZA Roster; BZA Bylaws 

============================================================================== 

ACTION:   That the Board nominates Ms. Karen Hines, 12236 Setzer Road, Stony Creek, Virginia 
23882, for appointment by the Circuit Court Judge to fill the unexpired term beginning 
immediately, ending January 31, 2026.   

MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________ 

Member Aye Nay Member Aye Nay 

Baicy ___ ___ Tolliver ___ ___ 

Fly ___ ___ Tyler ___ ___ 

Futrell ___ ___ White ___ ___ 

W. Jones ___ ___ 

Appointments - Page 4



Appointments - Page 5



Appointments - Page 6



Appointments - Page 7



Appointments - Page 8



Appointments - Page 9



SUSSEX COUNTY 
 BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS 

(Updated August 2023) 

**Thomas W. Baicy, III 
13138 Hardy Street, Post Office Box 272, Waverly VA 23890 

Cell: 804.731.6598 
Tbaicy@drmp.com 

Term expires: 01/31/2026 

Leon C. Dillard 
19361 Gray Road, Yale, VA 23897 

Cell:  804.218.3072 
Dillelec1@gmail.com 

Term expires:  01/31/2028 

C. Tyrone Griffin
10310 Kelly Lane, Wakefield VA  23888 

Cell:  757.556.1715 
Djrocafella5678@yahoo.com 
Term expires: 01/31/2025 

Sonda Parham 
919 W. Main Street, Waverly, VA 23890 

Cell:  804.712.5428 
sjparham@msn.com 

Term expires:  01/31/2027 

Gatewood “Lee” Simmons, Jr. 
16108 Robinson Road, Waverly, VA 23890 

Cell:  804.721.9466 
Csimmons@sussexcountyva.gov 

Term expires:  01/31/2024 

**Now serves on the Board of Supervisors.  Need a new appointment to fill the unexpired term. 

Appointments - Page 10

mailto:Tbaicy@drmp.com
mailto:Dillelec1@gmail.com
mailto:Djrocafella5678@yahoo.com
mailto:sjparham@msn.com
mailto:Csimmons@sussexcountyva.gov


BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item: Appointments #5.03 

Subject:   Appointments to the Planning Commission 

Board Meeting Date:  February 22 2024 

============================================================================== 

Summary:  Now that the new election district boundaries are effective and the new Board has 
taken office, the Planning Commission needs two appointments.  One appointment is needed for 
the Courthouse District.  The other appointment is needed for the Henry District.  

These appointments will be 4-year terms, beginning March 1, 2024 ending February 29, 2028. 

Recommendation: That the Board makes appointments to the Planning Commission for the 
Courthouse and Henry Districts. 

Attachments:  List of Planning Commission Members and Bylaws  

============================================================================== 

ACTION:   That the Board makes appointments to the Planning Commission for the Courthouse 
and Henry Districts. 

MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________ 

Member Aye Nay Member Aye Nay 

Baicy ___ ___ Tolliver ___ ___ 

Fly ___ ___ Tyler ___ ___ 

Futrell ___ ___ White ___ ___ 

W. Jones ___ ___ 

Appointments - Page 11



Updated 3.16.2023 by action of the BOS 

Sussex County 
Planning Commission Members

Regular Meeting Date:  First Monday of each Month @ 6:00 p.m. 

Terry Massenburg, Chairman (Yale) 
13200 Comans Well Road 
P. O. Box 330 
Stony Creek, VA 23882 
Cell:  434-637-7210 
Tmassenburg29@gmail.com 
Term Expires:  4/30/2024 

J. Lafayette Edmond, Vice Chairman (Member-at-
large)
16423 Jerusalem Plank Road
Waverly, VA 23890
Home:  804-834-2610
Cell:  804-380-9330
jlebigfoot@gmail.com
Term Expires: 6/30/2027

Vacant (Courthouse) Rudolph Shands (Stony Creek) 
12267 Flowers Road 
Stony Creek, VA 23882 
Home:  434-246-2232 
Shands301@gmail.com 
Term Expires:  6/30/2026* 

Roger King (Blackwater) 
29365 Lobbs Shop Road 
P. O. Box 349 
Waverly, VA 23890 
Cell:  804-691-1989 
Rogerlking33@gmail.com 
Term Expires:  1/31/2026 

Dennis Mason (Wakefield) 
407 East Main Street 
Wakefield, VA 23888 
Home:  757-899-8401 
Cell:  757-647-9799 
deltea@aol.com 
Term Expires:  6/30/2026 

Vacant (Henry) Andrew Mayes (Waverly) 
328 Coppahaunk Avenue 
Waverly, VA 23890 
Home:  804-337-1858 
amayes@commonwealthenvironmental.com 
Term Expires:  01/31/2027 

Kevin Bracy (Member-at-large) 
18377 Courthouse Road 
Yale, VA 23897 
Home:  434-246-4720 
Cell:  757-635-8685 
bornajunker@hotmail.com 
Term Expires:  1/31/2027 

Planning and Zoning Staff: 

Beverly Walkup, Director of Planning 
20135 Princeton Road 
P. O. Box 1397 
Sussex, VA 23884 
Office:  434-246-1042 
Cell:  757-651-4843 
bwalkup@sussexcountyva.gov 

Michael Poarch, Planner 
20135 Princeton Road 
P. O. Box 1397 
Sussex, VA 23884 
Office:  434-246-1043 
mpoarch@sussexcountyva.gov 

Appointments - Page 12

mailto:Tmassenburg29@gmail.com
mailto:jlebigfoot@gmail.com
mailto:Shands301@gmail.com
mailto:Rogerlking33@gmail.com
mailto:deltea@aol.com
mailto:amayes@commonwealthenvironmental.com
mailto:bornajunker@hotmail.com
mailto:bwalkup@sussexcountyva.gov
mailto:mpoarch@sussexcountyva.gov


Appointments - Page 13



Appointments - Page 14



Appointments - Page 15



Appointments - Page 16



Appointments - Page 17



BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item:   Action Item #6.01 

Subject:  Blackwater Solar Project Application Consideration Schedule 

Board Meeting Date:  February 22 2024 

============================================================================== 

Summary:   Attached is the Blackwater Solar Project meeting schedule for the Board’s 
consideration.  

This schedule was developed by staff with input from the County Attorney and planning 
consultant, with the goal of providing efficient, convenient access for public comments and a 
thorough review process for the project (specifically the conditional use permit application, 
rezoning application, and siting agreement). The meeting schedule begins on March 25 with a 
joint public hearing between the Board of Supervisors and Planning Commission, at the Airfield 
4-H Center, a facility that should provide ample room to accommodate the public in a convenient
location adjacent to the proposed project site. Staff notes that this schedule is tentative and
could change due to additional needed review and other unforeseen delays, but is intended to
be transparent and allow sufficient notice for the public, applicant, and BOS/Planning
Commission members.

Recommendation:  Staff recommends adoption of the proposed schedule for consideration of 
the Blackwater solar project application. 

Attachment:   Draft Calendar   

============================================================================= 

ACTION:  That the Board adopts the proposed schedule for consideration of the Blackwater solar 
project application. 

MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________ 

Member Aye Nay Member Aye Nay 

Baicy ___ ___ Tolliver ___ ___ 

Fly ___ ___ Tyler ___ ___ 

Futrell ___ ___ White ___ ___ 

W. Jones ___ ___ 



BLACKWATER SOLAR PROJECT 

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT AND REZONING APPLICATION 

SUSSEX COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS/PLANNING COMMISSION  

TENTATIVE MEETING/PUBLIC HEARING CALENDAR 

 

 

Monday, March 25 Joint Public Hearing on CUP and rezoning applications (Board of 

Supervisors and Planning Commission), Airfield 4-H Center, 6 pm (to 

include applicant and staff presentations) 

 

Monday, April 1 Planning Commission regular meeting-- discussion and possible 

recommendation on CUP and rezoning applications, District Courtroom, 6 

pm (additional meetings TBD if no action taken) 

 

Monday, May 13 Board of Supervisors additional Public Hearing on CUP/rezoning and first 

public hearing on siting agreement, Airfield 4-H Center, 6 pm 

 

Thursday, May 16 Regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors—consideration of CUP 

application, rezoning application, and siting agreement, District 

Courtroom, 6 pm  

 

 

 



BOARD ACTION FORM 
 
Agenda Item:   Unfinished Business #8.01 
 
Subject:  Adoption of Board Rules and Procedures 
 
============================================================================== 
 
Summary:   This item was tabled from the February 1, 2024 Board of Supervisors Special meeting.  
The Board will discuss and or act on the adoption of the Board Rules and Procedures 
 
Recommendation:  N/A 
 
Attachment:  
 
============================================================================= 
 
ACTION:  N/A 
 
MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________     
 

             

             

             

             

  

Member Aye Nay    Member Aye Nay 
 
Baicy  ___ ___    Tolliver ___ ___ 

Fly  ___ ___    Tyler  ___ ___  

Futrell  ___ ___    White  ___ ___ 

W. Jones ___ ___ 

      



BOARD ACTION FORM 
 
Agenda Item:   Unfinished Business #8.02 
 
Subject:  Stony Creek Volunteer Rescue Squad ERP Compliance Plan of Action 
 
============================================================================== 
 
Summary:   This item was tabled from the February 1, 2024 Board of Supervisors Special meeting.  
There will be discussion of the Stony Creek Volunteer Rescue Squad ERP Compliance Plan of 
Action 
 
Recommendation:  N/A 
 
Attachment:  
 
============================================================================= 
 
ACTION:  N/A 
 
MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________     
 

             

             

             

             

  

Member Aye Nay    Member Aye Nay 
 
Baicy  ___ ___    Tolliver ___ ___ 

Fly  ___ ___    Tyler  ___ ___  

Futrell  ___ ___    White  ___ ___ 

W. Jones ___ ___ 

      


	#1 2 22 2024 BOS Agenda
	#2.01 Minutes
	#2.01-1 1 25 2024 Special meeting minutes
	#2.01-2 2 1 2024Rescheduled  Regular BOS meeting minutes
	#2.01-3 2 8 2024 BWS Big Ticket Items

	#2.02 Warrants and Vouchers
	#2.03-#2.04 Consent Agenda
	#2.03 Treasurer's Report (002)
	#2.04-1 BD Cover
	#2.04-2 BLDG DEPT January 2024 Report
	#2.04-3 BLDG DEPT January 2024
	#2.04-4 SD Cover
	#2.04-5

	#3 Recognitions
	#3.01-1  VDOT
	#3.01-2 Proposed Road Paving- Butts Road
	#3.02-1  BRL
	#3.03-1  CARRIE
	#3.03-2 Carrie D Delk-Gray
	#3.04-1  Deputy Bristol (004)
	#3.04-2 Phillips

	#5 Appointments
	#5.01-1 SSA Alternate At-Large Appointment
	#5.01-2 Resolution appointing alternate members
	#5.02-1 BZA Nomination
	#5.02-2 KH App Form for SCB&C
	#5.02-3 BZA By-Laws
	#5.02-3 BZA ROSTER 8 3 2023
	#5.03-1 Planning Commission
	#5.03-2 Planning Commission Member List.updated
	#5.03-3 Planning Commission Bylaws

	#6 Action Items
	#6.01-1 blkwater Solar Project meeting Schedule
	#6.01-2 BLACKWATER SOLAR PROJECT meeting schedule revised

	#8 Unfinished Business
	#8.01 Adoption of Board Rules and Procedures
	#8.02 SCVRS ERP Compliance Plan of Action




